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BE ORE THE UN.TED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION III

1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029

DOCKET NO. FIFRA-03-201 0-0355

CONSENT AGREEMENT

NOTABLY LATE OR NON REPORTING

)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Preliminary Statement

CONSENT AGREEMENT

l.

5.

4.

3.

2.

his Consent Agreement is entered into by the Director of the Land and Chemicals
Divisio U.S. Environmdntal Protection Agency - Region III ("EPA" or "Complainant")and

I 0
Sylvan merica, Inc. ("Rfspondent") pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Federal Insecticide;.
Fungici e and Rodenticide Act ("FIFRA"), as amended, 7 U.S.C. § I36/(a), and Sections
22.13(b and .18(b) of thel Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative
Assess nt of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits
C"consj lidated Rules of Rractice"), 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b) and .18(b). This Consent Agreement
and the ttached Final Order (hereinafter jointly referred to as the "CAFO") resolve
Compl~i ant's civil penalty claims against the Respondent under FIFRA arising from the
violatio of FIFRA allege1d herein.

I General Provisions

I I

r purposes of this proceeding only, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations settrth in this CAFO.

xcept as provide1 in paragraph I, above, Respondent neither admits nor denies the
$ ecitic factual allegations and conclusions of law set forth in this CAFO.

I espondent agreel not to contest the jurisdiction of the EPA with respect to the execution
([) this Consent A~reement, the issuance of the attached Final Order, or the enforcementt the CAFO.

f r the purposes o:fthis proceeding only, Respondent hereby expressly waives any right
~( contest any issue of law or fact set forth in this Consent Agreement and any right to
t peal the accomp1anying Final Order.

I"p"''''",J" '" <h, i,,_co of<hi' CAFO AA' """ '" "mpt, wi<h i"=,.

INRE:

Sylvan merica, Inc. ;
West HI' Is Industrial ParR
Kittann g, PA 16201-031

I

I espondent



6.

7.

I

espondent shall1bear its own costs and attorney's fees.

EPA's Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law

accordance witl the Consolidated Rules at Sections 22.13(b) and .18(b)(2) and (3),
omplainant alleges the following findings offact and conclusions oflaw:

Respondelt is a "person" within the meaning of Section 2(s) ofFIFRA, 7 U.S.C.
§ 136(s), Jnd is subject to civil penalties pursuant to Section 14(a)(I) ofFIFRA, 7
U.S.C. § 1'1361(a)(I).

At all times relevant to the violation alleged herein, Respondent operated a
registered !pesticide producing "establishment" as that term is defined by Section
2(dd) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § I36(dd), located at 199 Nolte Drive in Kittanning,
PA. This bstablishment is registered with EPA under Establishment Number
070002-PA-002.

At all timL relevant to the violation alleged herein, Respondent was a "producer"
as defined!lat Section 2(w) ofFIFRA, 7 U.S.c. § I 36(w), and 40 C.F.R. § 167.3.

Section 7(¢)(I) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.c. § 136e(c)(I), provides, inter alia, that a
producer 6perating a registered establishment is required to submit annually a
pesticide ~roduction report to EPA stating the types and amounts of pesticides:
(A) whichitbe producer is currently producing; (B) which the producer has
produced during the past year; and (C) which the producer has sold or distributed
during thel past year.

40 C.F.R, ,§ 167.85(d) requires that a producer operating a registered
establishnlent submit its pesticide production report (EPA Form 3540-16)

, .
annually for the precedmg calendar year on or before March I of each year, even

I

if the producer has produced no pesticidal product for that reporting year.

Section Id(a)(2)(L) ofFIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § I 36j(a)(2)(L), provides that it is
I

unlawful for any person who is a producer to violate any provisions of Section 7
ofFIFRA

1
7 U.S.C. § 136e. .

Respondent was required to submit to EPA by March I, 2010, a pesticide
productio~ report (EPA Form 3540-16) concerning its production, sales, and
distribution of pesticides during calendar year 2009.

I

Respondent failed to submit its pesticide production report for calendar year 2009
,

on or before March 1,2010,

RespondJt's failure to timely submit its pesticide production report for calendar
year 2009 'on or before March I, 20 I0 constitutes a violation of Section 7 of



8.

9.

10.

FIFRA, 7IU,S,C. § 136e, and therefore, an unlawful act under Section 12(a)(2)(L)
of FIFRA, 7 U.S.c. § 136j(a)(2)(L).

Respondeht is a "distributor" subject to the assessment of a civil pe~alty under
I .

Section 14(a)(I ) ofFIFRA, 7 U.S.C. l36/(a)(l).

Settlement

settlement of tile above-captioned action, Respondent consents to the assessment of a
ivil penalty oftJo thousand seven hundred dollars ($2,700), which Respondent agrees

pay in accordm\ce with the terms set forth below. Such civil penalty amount shall
ecome due and ~ayable immediately upon receipt by Respondent of a true and correct
opy of the fUlly-~xecuted and filed CAFO. In order to avoid the assessment of interest,
dministrative co~ts, and late payment penalties in connection with such civil penalty as
escribed in this <CAFO, Respondent must pay the civil penalty no later than thirty (30)
alendar days aftJr the date on which a copy of this CAFO is mailed or hand-delivered to
espondent. I

I

he aforesaid settlement amount is based upon Complainant's consideration of a number
ffactors, includihg, but not limited to, the statutory factors set forth in SeGtion 14(a)(4)
fFlFRA, 7 U.s·f. § I 36/(a)(4), i.e., the size of Respondent's business, the effect of the
enalty on Respondent's ability to continue in business, and the gravity of the violation.
hese factors werb applied to the particular facts and circumstances of this case with
ecific referencelto EPA's Enforcement Response Policy for FIFRA Section 7(c)

stablishment Reporting Requirements, updated May 2010, and 40 C.F.R. Part 19.

I

ayment of the ciyil penalty amount required under the terms of Paragraph 8, above, shall
e made as follows:

a. Mailing (via first class Us. Postal Service Mail) a certified or cashier's check,
made payable to the "United States Treasury" to the following address:

I

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties
Cincinnati Finance Center
P.O. Box 979077
St. Louis, MO, 63197-9000.

Contact: Craig Steffen 513-487-2091
Eric Volck 513-487-2105

b. Via OvJrnight Delivery of a certified or cashier's check, made payable to the
"United St1ates Treasury", sent to the following address:

. ,
U.S. Bank
Government Lockbox 979077



Cincinnati Finance
US EPA, MS-NWD
26 W. M.L. King Drive
Cincinnati, OH 45268-000 I

US EPA Fines & Penalties
1005 Convention Plaza
SL-MO-C2-GL
St. Louis, MO 6310 I

I 314-418-1028

c. All payment made by check in any currency drawn on banks with no USA
branches ~hall be addressed for delivery to:

I .

I

d. By electronic funds transfer ("EFT") to the following acCOunt:

Federal Reserve Bank of New York
ABA 021030004
Account No. 680 I0727
SWIFT Address FRNYUS33
33 Liberty Street
NY, NY 10045

(Field tag 4200 of Fedwire message should read "D
68010727 Environmental Protection Agency")

e. By autoratic clearinghouse ("ACH") to the following account:

U.S. Treasury REXiCashlink ACH Receiver
ABA 051036706
Account No. 310006
Environmental Protection Agency
CTX Format
Transaction Code 22 - checking

Contact: John Schmid
202-874-7026

f. Online
l
payments can be made at WWW.PAY.GOV by entering "sfo 1.1" in

the search field, and opening the form and completing the required fields.

g. Additi~nal payment guidance is available at:
.http://www.epa.gov/ocfo/finservices/makeapayment.htm

I



II.

12.

13.

11 payments shall also reference the above case caption and docket number, FIFRA-03­
010-0355. At thle same time that any payment is made, Respondent shall mail copies of
ny correspondin~ check, or provide written notification confirming any electronic wire
ansfer, automated clearinghouse or online payment to Lydia A. Guy, Regional Hearing

,

lerk (3RCOO), y.S. EPA, Region lll, 1650 Arch Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
9103-2029 and t(J Kyla L. Townsend-McIntyre (3 LC62), Land and Chemicals Division,
.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region lll, 1650 Arch Street, Philadelphia,
ennsylvania 19Ib3-2029.

I

ursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717 and 40 C.F.R. § 13.11, EPA is entitled to assess interest and
te payment pendlties on outstanding debts owed to the United States and also to assess a

harge to cover tHe costs of processing and handling a delinquent claim, as more fully
escribed below. IAccordingly, Respondent's failure to make timely payment or to
omply with the c:onditions in this CAFO shall result in the assessment of late payment

arges including: interest, penalties, and/or administrative costs of handling delinquent
ebts.

terest on the civ,il penalty assessed in this CAFO will begin to accrue on the date that a
py of this CAF0 is mailed or hand-delivered to Respondent. However, EPA will not
ek to recover interest on any amount of the civil penalty that is paid within thirty (30)
lendar days after the date on which such interest begins to accrue. Interest will be
sessed at the rate of the United States Treasury tax and loan rate in accordance with 40
.F.R. § 13.1 I(a).!

he cost of the A~enCY's administrative handling of overdue debts will be charged and
, sessed monthly ~hroughout the period the debt is overdue. 40 C.F.R. § 13.11 (b).

ursuant to Appendix 2 of EPA's Resources Management Directives - Cash
anagement, Chcipter 9, EPA will assess a $15.00 administrative handling charge for
ministrative co~ts on unpaid penalties for the first thirty (30) day period after the
yment is due and an additional $15.00 for each subsequent thirty (30) days the penalty

, mains unpaid. I

penalty charge 6f six percent per year will be assessed monthly on any portion of the
,

viI penalty whic)1 remains delinquent more than ninety (90) calendar days. 40 C.F.R.
13. II (c). Shoulp assessment of the penalty charge on the debt be required, it shall
crue from the first day payment is delinquent. 31 C.F.R. § 901.9(d).

espondent agreJ not to deduct for civil taxation purposes the civil penalty paid
rsuant to this CtFO.

Certification

espondent certifies by its signature herein that it is currently in compliance with all
plicable requirelnents of Section 7 of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136e.



I Other ApPlicable Laws

I

14. othing in this C~FO shall relieve Respondent of its obligation to comply with all
plicable Federal, State, and local laws and regulations.

!

Reservation of Rights

15. his CAFO resol~es only EPA's civil claims for penalties for the specific violation
leged in this CO\lsent Agreement. EPA reserves the right to commence action against
y person, incluqing Respondent, in response to any condition which EPA determines
ay present an imminent and substantial endangerment to the public health, public
elfare, or the enyironment. In addition, this settlement is subject to al1 limitations on
e scope of resolution and to the reservation of rights set forth in Section 22.18(c) of the
onsolidated RulJs of Practice. Further, EPA reserves any rights and remedies available

1 it under FIFRAl the regulations promulgated thereunder, and any other Federal laws or
t gulations for which EPA has jurisdiction, to enforce the provisions of this CAFO,

llowing its filing with the Regional Hearing Clerk.

Full and Final Satisfaction

16.

17.

18.

19.

his settlement shall constitute full and final satisfaction of all civil claims for penalties
hich CompJainaht may have under Section 14(a) ofFIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136/(a), for the
ecific violation ~lleged in this CAFO. Compliance with this CAFO shall not be a
fense to any action commenced at any time for any other violation of the Federal laws

,

d regulations administered by EPA.

Parties Bound

his CAFO shall apply to and be binding upon the EPA, Respondent, and the officers,
, .rectors, successclrs, and assigns of Respondent. By his or her signature below, the

rson signing thik Consent Agreement on behalf of Respondent is acknowledging that
or she is fully duthorized by Respondent to execute this Consent Agreement and to

gaily bind Respclndent to the terms and conditions of this CAFO.

Effective Date

he effective dateiofthis CAFO is the date on which the Final Order, signed by the
egional Administrator of EPA -- Region III, or his designee, the Regional Judicial
fficer, is filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk pursuant to the Consolidated Rules of

actice. I .

II Entire Agreement

his CAFO consti,tutes the entire agreement and understanding of the Parties concerning1ttlement of the above-captioned action and there are no representations, warranties,
Ie venants, terms, 61' conditions agreed upon between the Parties other than those



xpressed thereinl

For Re ondent:

9--10
Date

Lk-//L/
Donald A. Smiih, Treasurer
Sylvan America, Inc.

For Co plainant:

L~114J; -7i4u
a L. Townsend-McIntyre /'

esticides and Asbestos Programs Branch

&9
Date

the Fin
ccordingly, I hereby recommend that the Regional Administrator or his designee issue

I

Order attached hereto.

I

Date
~E~~

Abraham Ferdas, Director
Land and Chemicals Division



B FORE THE U~ITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

I

RE,GION III
1650 Arch Street

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029

INRE:

SYIVa~ merica, Inc.
West i Is Industrial Park
Kittann· g, PA 16201-03

,

espondent

)
)
)
)
)
)
)

DOCKET NO. FIFRA-03-2010-0355

FINAL ORDER

FINAL ORDER

I

omplainant, the pirector of the Land and Chemicals Division, U.S. Environmental

Protecti n Agency - Regi10n III, and Respondent, Sylvan America, Inc., have executed a'-1 ',,"d'" "Co,l.A""m",", whkh , h~,hy ,,<ify M " Co"~,' Aw"mrn",
accorda ce with the con~olidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of

Civil Pi aIties and the RivocatiOnlTermination or Suspension of Permits, 40 C.F.R. Part 22

("Cons, idated Rules of ~ractice"). The terms of the foregoing Consent Agreement are accepted

by the +dersigned and i+orporated into this Final Order as if fully set forth at length herein.

I

. OW, THEREFqRE, PURSUANT TO Section I4(a) of the Federal Insecticide,
I

Fungici , and Rodenticide Act, as amended, 7 U.S.c. § 136/(a) ("FIFRA"), and the

CO~OI!M"'''' Ro'" Ofp+"", md h"'o,"'''=',,d h"~d""<h, port,,,' "pre~".,o,',<h,

Consenl kgreement that the penalty agreed to III the Consent Agreement IS based on a

considJLion of the factols set forth in Section 14(a)(4) ofFIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § I36/(a)(4), IT IS



HERE, Y ORDERED thlt Respondent pay a penalty of two thousand seven hundred dollars

($2,70 , and comply wilh the terms and conditions of the Consent Agreement.

he effective date of the foregoing Consent Agreement and this Final Order is the date on
I .

which is Final Order is filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk.

~Au~etl'e&lTIlj ian
Regional Judicial Officer
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region III

I



BEFO THE UNITED! STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
Region III

1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029

INRE:

Sylvan nerica, Inc.
West Hi Industrial Park
Kittannit ' PAl 620 I-03

R spondent

)
)
)
)
)
)
)

DOCKET NO. FIFRA-03-2010-0355

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I

I ertify that the fofegoing CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER in the above
referenc matter was sen1 this day in the following manner to the below addressees.

Origina nd one copy b~ hand-delivery:
I

i

Lydia G , Regional Hearing Clerk
I
I
,

Copy by ertified Mail

Donald
Sylvan
90 Glad

KittanniJ

Date

Smith
erica, Inc.
nve

, PA 16201

P 23 2010

ifer M. Abramson (3LC62)
Senior Assistant Regional Counsel
U.S. EPA, Region III

I

i

PrJ ed on 100% recycled/recyclable paper with 100% post-consumerfiber and process chlorine free.
I Customer Service HofJine: 1-800-438-2474



I

I

I

!
IUNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
. REGION III

1650 Arch Street
philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029

I

In R~ Iy Refer To Mail Code: 3LC62

CER IFIED MAIL
RET RN RECEIPT REOUESTED
Don d A. Smith
Sylv in America, Inc.
Syl' fn Bio, Inc.
90 q ade Drive
Kitt l Juring, PA 16201

Re: Consent Agreement and Final Order
IEPA Docket 1jlo. FIFRA-03-2010-0355

EPA Docket No. FIFRA.03-2010-0354
I

De Mr. Smith:

SEP 2 3 2010

Enclosed are fopies of the CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER for each of
the matters referenced above that were filed today with the Regional Hearing Clerk. For your file, I
am ~Iso enclosing copies of the relevant supporting memorandums from Environmental Protection
All ncy managemenf to the Regional Judicial Officer. Should you have any questions or concerns,

pi se feel free to crtact me at (215) g14-2066.

I Sincerely,

%{{~
Jennifer M. Abramson
Senior Assistant Regional Counsel

E losures


